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EMMANUEL NSAHLAI, SBN (207588) 
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3250 WILSHIRE BLVD, STE 1500 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90010 

Tel :  (213) 797-0369 

Fax :  (213) 973-4617 

 

Attorney for Plaintiffs 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

 

Jane Doe, individually, and on behalf 

of all others similarly situated; John 

Doe, individually, and on behalf of all 

others similarly situated  

DOES plaintiffs 1 through 1000, 

 

                    Plaintiffs, 

 

vs. 

 

Ivo Tanku Tapang, an individual; and 

DOES 1 through 5000. 

Defendants. 
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Case No.:  

 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES, 

INJUNCTION AND 

DECLARATORY RELIEF 
 

1. FOR PERSONAL INJURY AND 

WRONGFUL DEATH 

DAMAGES PURSUANT TO 

THE ANTI-TERRORISM ACT; 

2. FOR PERSONAL INJURY AND 

WRONGFUL DEATH 

DAMAGES PURSUANT TO 

STATE TORT LAW; 

3. FOR PERSONAL INJURY AND 

WRONGFUL DEATH 

DAMAGES PURSUANT TO 

THE ALIEN TORT CLAIMS 

ACT; 

4. FOR RICO (18 U.S.C. § 1962(C)) 

5. FOR RICO CONSPIRACY (18 

U.S.C. § 1962(D)) 

6. LIABILITY FOR AIDING AND 

ABETTING ACTS OF 

INTERNATIONAL 
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TERRORISM PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. § 2333(a) 

7. LIABILITY FOR CONSPIRING 

IN FURTHERANCE OF ACTS 

OF INTERNATIONAL 

TERRORISM PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. § 2333(a) 

8. PROVISION OF MATERIAL 

SUPPORT TO TERRORISTS IN 

VIOLATION OF 18 U.S.C. 

§2339a 

9. NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF 

EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL  
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I. INTRODUCTION 

 This case concerns plaintiffs, Jane Doe and John Doe, U.S. citizens and resident 

of this County where this court is venued for Jane Doe, resident of Los Angeles county 

for John Doe, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, who have 

suffered the death of beloved parents, children and siblings, and resulting from that, 

suffered  severe emotional distress, harassment, anxiety, suffering, sleepless nights 

and other assorted grief and anguish due to the conduct, actions, participation, and 

material support of defendant Tapang Ivo Tanku (“Tapang”) to his agents, joint 

venturers, forces, organization named Ambazonia Defense Forces ( “ADF”) which 

culminated in the death of plaintiff Jane Doe’s father and brother on May 20, 2018, 

and Plaintiff John Doe’s father in August of 2018. 

 Plaintiff Jane Doe files this complaint on behalf of herself, and others similarly 

situated, approximated in the thousands, residing here in the United States, citizens or 

residents of the United States, and/or Cameroonians, but who have lost loved ones and 

family, pain and anguish and suffering, due to the conduct and actions of defendant 

Tapang. Plaintiff John Doe files similarly. 

 Defendant Tapang, from what he presumes is a safe harbor hiding place at his 

San Jose residence in the USA, while he engages in terrorist acts occurring in 

Cameroon, has spectacularly and beyond any reasonable doubt ( see Exhibits A and 

B charts illustrating over one hundred posts and videos, and hyperlinks to Tapang’s 

postings and links to his video posts, with all charts information and accompanying 

links documents and videos, fully incorporated herein ) conducted himself and acted, 

participated, and materially supported actions by the ADF, for which he is the 

spokesperson, which has lead not just to the death of plaintiffs father and brother, but 

also of hundreds of innocent civilians.  

Terrorism is broadly defined as “the unlawful use of violence and intimidation, 

especially against civilians, in the pursuit of political aims as,” and “international 

Case 5:18-cv-07721   Document 1   Filed 12/26/18   Page 3 of 42



 

-2- 

Jane Doe, John Doe v. Ivo Tanku Tapang  Case .No. ___________________ 

Complaint For Damages, Injunction and Declaratory Relief 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

terrorism,” according to 18 U.S.C. § 2331 as “activities that involve acts or acts 

dangerous to human life that are in violation of the criminal laws of the United States 

or of any State, that would be a criminal violation if committed within the jurisdiction 

of the United States or of any State.” The conduct, actions, participation, and material 

support of Tapang to the events of the May 20th attacks in Cameroon is terrorism in 

miniature, as well as all other ADF and armed separatist groups attacks on innocent 

civilians in the North West and South West regions of Cameroon. Because of the 

foregoing, there can be no doubt: Tapang is a terrorist, and one of the highest 

order. He must be stopped. While Tapang and his ilk will surely seek to hide behind 

the protections of Constitutional First Amendment Rights to free speech, this case is 

not about inhibiting their rights to free speech, or to engage in political advocacy, or 

as a rights group, and it expressly disavows any such intentions, but it is about their 

conduct, actions, material support, and participation in terrorism, which lead to 

plaintiffs injuries. Tapang has engaged in conduct and actions equating to “training”, 

“expert advice or assistance,” “service”, and providing “personnel” to the Ambazonia 

Defense forces and its fighters, leading to deaths of innocent civilians, including the 

parents and siblings of plaintiffs.  

To better understand this case, a brief synopsis of the background of this matter 

will be enlightening. Tapang is the spokesperson for a group that hails itself as 

Ambazonia Defense Forces (“ADF”) with a stated political aim of secession or 

separation from the Republic of Cameroon. However, in seeking that political goal, 

Tapang, his agents, joint venture associates, co-conspirators, ADF and related 

organizations, engage in acts of terrorism against innocent civilians that do not 

subscribe to their stated political goal of separation from the Republic of Cameroon 

to form an Ambazonia state, and it is such actions that led to the death of plaintiff Jane 

Doe’s father and brother, plaintiff John Doe’s father, and sufferings of plaintiff 

residing here in the USA. This same story is applicable to all other plaintiffs, US 

Case 5:18-cv-07721   Document 1   Filed 12/26/18   Page 4 of 42



 

-3- 

Jane Doe, John Doe v. Ivo Tanku Tapang  Case .No. ___________________ 

Complaint For Damages, Injunction and Declaratory Relief 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

residents and citizens, victims of Tapang’s conduct and actions that constitute material 

support of terrorism, which he conducts from within the territorial jurisdiction of the 

United States. 

The loss of one’s life is never adequately compensated by monetary 

compensation. Accordingly, this complaint will also seek a preliminary and 

permanent injunction, as well as declaratory relief, against any and all conduct, 

actions, participation, and material support of terrorism against Tapang, his 

organizations, supporters, accomplices, and DOES defendants, who will be named 

once discovery gets going and they are identified. 

Plaintiffs will file, as appropriate, criminal complaints with the FBI offices with 

jurisdiction over Tapang’s residence, police reports with local police terrorism units, 

as well as complaints with the immigration authorities for his immigration law 

violations. Plaintiffs seek, and will get, God willing, justice for themselves and all 

others similarly situated. 

    NATURE OF ACTION 

1. This is an action for damages against Ivo Tanku Tapang and DOES 1-

5000, pursuant to the Antiterrorism Act, 18 U.S.C. § 2333 (“ATA”) for aiding, 

abetting, and knowingly providing material support and resources to the Ambazonia 

Defense Forces ( ADF ) and other armed militia groups that carried out May 20th 

attacks that killed plaintiff Jane Doe’s father and brother, plaintiff John Doe’s father, 

as wells attacks throughout circa October 2016 to present that has killed hundreds of 

innocent civilians, who are the parents, children, and spouses, of US citizens and 

residents natives of Cameroon. 

2. The ATA’s civil remedies have served as an important means for 

enforcing the federal criminal anti-terrorism provisions since the early 1990s. 

3. Congress enacted the ATA in October 1992 as a legal complement to 

criminal penalties against terrorists that kill or injure Americans abroad, specifically 
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intending that the civil provisions would not only provide a mechanism for 

compensating victims of terror but also serve as an important means of depriving 

terrorists of financial resources to carry out attacks. 

4. Following the bombing of the World Trade Center in New York by al-

Qaeda in1993, Congress targeted terrorist resources again by enacting 18 U.S.C. § 

2339A in September 1994, making it a crime to provide material support or resources 

knowing or intending that they will be used in preparing or carrying out terrorist acts. 

5. In April 1996, Congress further expanded the effort to cut off resources 

to terrorists by enacting 18 U.S.C. § 2339B, making it a crime to knowingly provide 

material support or resources to a designated foreign terrorist organization. 

6. In the wake of the terror attacks on the United States by al-Qaeda on 

September 11, 2001 killing nearly 3,000 Americans, Congress amended the “material 

support” statutes, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2339A-B, via the PATRIOT Act in October 2001 and 

the Intelligence Reform and Terrorism Prevention Act of 2004, to impose greater 

criminal penalties for violating these statutes and to expand the definition of “material 

support or resources” prohibited thereby. 

7. The Ambazonia Defense Forces (“ADF”), of which Tapang is the 

spokesperson, is the "official" military wing of the Ambazonian separatist movement, 

and although other smaller, independent militias exist, they tend to cooperate closely 

with the ADF if not absorb into it altogether. 

8. Officially, ADF aims to raise the cost of Cameroon's military presence in 

the region higher than the profits the country gets from there; their aim is to make 

North-West and South-West regions of Cameroon “ungovernable”, and to coerce, 

intimidate, kill, kidnap, harm any innocent civilians who do not obey or agree or 

subscribe to their political goals.  
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9. According to RFI journalist Emmanuel Freudenthal who was embedded 

with the ADF for a week on or about June of 2018, ADF has about 1,500 fighters 

spread around 20 camps in Anglophone Cameroon. 

10. At several points in 2018, Amnesty International and Human Rights 

Watch have accused the ADF separatists, materially supported by defendant Tapang 

and DOES defendants, of violently enforcing the boycott of government schools by 

destroying over 40 schools and assaulting teachers who refused to comply. They’ve 

also been accused of kidnapping civilians suspected of working with the government. 

11. Tapang, and the ADF, have repeatedly threatened to kill or harm 

civilians, and do kill and harm civilians, who engage in any civic duty such as going 

to school, voting, or not adhere strictly to their revolutionary edicts. 

12. Tapang and DOES Defendants knowing provide material support to the 

ADF, its fighters, agents, and related organizations, with the knowledge and intent, 

that they execute violent acts and crimes, in violation of USA laws, and such violent 

acts and crimes, not only harm Cameroonians living within Cameroon, but also a 

substantial portion of USA citizens of Cameroonian origin, whose parents, siblings, 

children, extended family are killed, businesses ruined, property stolen, and thus they 

suffer intolerable pain and anguish; or kidnappings, and the US based Cameroonians 

are contacted to pay ransom, as happens hundreds of times. 

13. By providing material support and platform, including Does defendants 

holding fund raising activities for Tapang and the ADF, Tapang violated the federal 

prohibitions on providing material support or resources for acts of international 

terrorism (18 U.S.C. § 2339A), and committed acts of international terrorism as 

defined by 18 U.S.C. § 2331, as well as violated numerous other Federal and State 

criminal laws, as described further below. Accordingly, Tapang and Doe defendants 

are liable pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2333 to the plaintiffs, who were injured by reason 

of acts of international terrorism. 
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14. Plaintiffs’ claims are based not upon the speech communications of 

Tapang and Does defendants on social media postings, but upon Defendants provision 

of the infrastructure, platform, which provides material support to ADF and related 

armed militia in Cameroon. 

THE PARTIES 

15. Jane Doe, a resident of this County, along with her siblings lost their 

father in the May 20th attacks in Kumbo as further detailed below. Jane Doe is a citizen 

of the United States. The nondisclosure of Jane Doe’s identity is necessary for Jane 

Doe and her family’s life, as Tapang and his ADF are currently operational and 

engaging in consistent acts of terrorism. As the 9th Circuit has held, pseudonyms may 

be used to protect a party from “injury”, and “a party may preserve his or her 

anonymity in judicial proceedings in special circumstances when the party’s need for 

anonymity outweighs prejudice to the opposing party and the public’s interest in 

knowing the party’s identity.” Does I thru XXIII v. Advanced Textile Corp., 214 F.3d 

1058, 1067-68 (9th Cir. 2000)(quoting United States v. Doe, 655 F.2d 920, 922 n.1 

(9th Cir. 1981). Plaintiffs will seek leave of court to proceed under a pseudonym.  

16. John Doe, a resident of Los Angeles County, along with his mother and 

siblings, lost their father, due to the actions of Tapang providing material support to 

ADF forces, who killed their father because he allegedly cooperated with the 

government of Cameroon. The nondisclosure of John Doe’s identity is necessary for 

John Doe and his family’s life, as Tapang and his ADF are currently operational and 

engaging in consistent acts of terrorism. As the 9th Circuit has held, pseudonyms may 

be used to protect a party from “injury”, and “a party may preserve his or her 

anonymity in judicial proceedings in special circumstances when the party’s need for 

anonymity outweighs prejudice to the opposing party and the public’s interest in 

knowing the party’s identity.” Does I thru XXIII v. Advanced Textile Corp., 214 F.3d 
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1058, 1067-68 (9th Cir. 2000)(quoting United States v. Doe, 655 F.2d 920, 922 n.1 

(9th Cir. 1981). Plaintiffs will seek leave of court to proceed under a pseudonym.  

17. DOES Plaintiffs 1 -1000 are nationals of Cameroon, whether living in 

the USA or in Cameroon, who have suffered injury or harm, whether to themselves, 

or death of their parents and siblings, due to the actions of Tapang and DOES 

Defendants. Plaintiffs have setup a website, www.cameroonvictims.org, where 

similar plaintiffs, whether residing in the USA or in Cameroon, may submit in 

confidentiality the story of their loss, so that plaintiff’s attorney may join them in this 

lawsuit. 

18. Defendant Ivo Tanku Tapang, an individual, resides within this district, 

in San Jose, California. A substantial portion of his material support activities were 

conducted within this district. 

19. DOES defendants 1 through 5000 are US residents, nationals, citizens, 

who are natives of Cameroon, who have provided financial and other material support, 

including training, expert advice or assistance, service, and personnel, to named 

defendant Tapang Ivo, his ADF, agents, fighters, and related organizations, in 

violation of Federal and State Anti-terrorism laws, and other criminal statutes. 

20. DOES defendants 1 through 5000 are US residents, nationals, citizens, 

who are natives of Cameroon, whose conduct, voluntary or involuntary, supports or 

promotes the goals of Tapang Ivo, his ADF, agents, fighters, and related organizations 

in violation of Federal and State Anti-terrorism laws, and other criminal statutes. 

 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 

21. The Court has jurisdiction over this case under 28 U.S.C. §1331 (federal 

question jurisdiction); and 28 U.S.C. §1332 (diversity jurisdiction). 
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22. Jurisdiction over this action further exists pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1332, 

as there is complete diversity of citizenship between the parties and the amount in 

controversy herein exceeds $75,000.00, exclusive of costs.  

23. Venue lies in the Northern District of California because defendant Ivo 

Tapang Tanku resides within the Northern District of California, and that a substantial 

portion of the relevant events which are the conduct and actions of defendant Ivo 

Tapang Tanku occurred, transpired, and/or originated within the Northern District of 

California.  

24. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§1391(b)(2) and 

1391(f)(1), as defendant resides in this district, and a substantial part of his terrorist  

conduct and actions giving rise to this litigation occurred within this District,  

25. Venue is further proper in this district pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §2334(a). 

26. The defendant Tapang Ivo is subject to jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§1331, in that, as set forth in detail below, this action: seeks money damages against 

Tapang Ivo for injury and death caused by the May 20th Attacks, which constitute an 

act of "international terrorism" in the United States as defined in 18 U.S.C. §2331; 

alleges that the May 20th Attacks and the resulting injuries and deaths were caused by 

a tortious act or acts of Tapang and his agents and joint venture partner ADF, by 

Tapang providing material support and resources to and facilitating the Ambazonia 

Defense Forces leaders, planners and killers responsible for the May 20th Attacks, and 

that such act or acts constitute more than mere negligence, and were intentional, 

knowing, reckless, willful and/or grossly negligent. Under similar material support, 

Tapang’s material support actions led to the death of John Doe’s father. 

27. The defendant Tapang Ivo is also subject to jurisdiction pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §1331 in that, as set forth in detail below, this action seeks money damages 

against the Tapang Ivo for injury and death occurring in the United States and caused 
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by the tortious act or omission of the Tapang Ivo and/or one or more of his agents or 

partners acting within the scope of their agency or partnership. 

 

II. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

 

A. LEGAL BACKGROUND: ANTITERRORISM LEGISLATION 

i. The Antiterrorism Act (“ATA”) 

28.  In the 1980’s, terrorist groups carried out a number of major terror 

attacks around the world, killing and injuring many Americans abroad. 

29.  Among these terror attacks were:  

a. The April 1983 suicide bombing of the U.S. Embassy in Beirut, Lebanon, 

killing 63people, including 17 Americans; 

b. The October 1983 suicide bombing of U.S. Marine barracks in Beirut, 

Lebanon, killing 241 U.S. Marines and injuring more than 100; 

c. the December 1983 terrorist bombings of the U.S. Embassy and the    

residential quarters of American company Raytheon in Kuwait;  

d. The September 1984 terrorist bombing of a U.S. Embassy annex 

northeast of Beirut, Lebanon; 

e. The June 1985 hijacking of TWA flight 847; 

f. The October 1985 hijacking of the Achille Lauro cruise ship and murder 

of wheelchair-bound American Leon Klinghoffer; and 

g. The December 1985 terrorist bombings of the Rome and Vienna airports. 
 

30. In response to these attacks, Congress in 1986 amended the U.S. Criminal 

Code, Title 18, Part I, to add a new chapter titled, “Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Over 

Terrorist Acts Abroad Against United States Nationals.”  
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31. This new chapter contained a new section titled, “Terrorist acts abroad 

against United States nationals,” providing criminal penalties for killing, conspiring, 

or attempting to kill a national of the United States, or engaging in physical violence 

with the intent to cause serious bodily injury to a national of the United States or that 

results in serious bodily injury to a national of the United States.  

32. In addition, Congress later enacted the ATA, which established a private 

cause of action for U.S. nationals injured by acts of international terrorism, as a legal 

complement to the criminal penalties against terrorists that kill or injure Americans 

abroad.  

33. In enacting the ATA, Congress specifically intended that the civil cause 

of action would not only provide a mechanism for compensating victims of terror, but 

also serve as an important means of depriving terrorists of financial resources to carry 

out attacks.  

34. As the ATA was being considered in Congress, the State Department’s 

Deputy Legal Advisor, Alan J. Kreczko, testified before the Senate Judiciary 

Committee’s Subcommittee on Courts and Administrative Practice that this proposed 

bill “will add to the arsenal of legal tools that can be used against those who commit 

acts of terrorism against United States citizens abroad.”1 

35. The Deputy Legal Advisor also testified: 

“[T]his bill will provide general jurisdiction to our federal courts and a cause of 

action for cases in which an American has been injured by an act of terrorism 

overseas. 

We view this bill as a welcome addition to the growing web of law we are 

weaving against terrorists. . . . The existence of such a cause of action . . .may 

deter terrorist groups from maintaining assets in the United States, from 

benefiting from investments in the U.S. and from soliciting funds within the 

                                                 
1 “Statement of Alan J. Kreczko, Deputy Legal Adviser, On S. 2465: A bill to provide a new civil cause 

of action in federal court for terrorist acts abroad against United States nationals,” Before the 

Subcommittee on Courts and Administrative Practice of the Senate Judiciary Committee (July 25, 

1990), https://www.state.gov/documents/organization/28458.pdf.   

Case 5:18-cv-07721   Document 1   Filed 12/26/18   Page 12 of 42



 

-11- 

Jane Doe, John Doe v. Ivo Tanku Tapang  Case .No. ___________________ 

Complaint For Damages, Injunction and Declaratory Relief 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

U.S. In addition, other countries may follow our lead and implement 

complimentary national measures, thereby increasing obstacles to terrorist 

operations. 

Moreover, the bill may be useful in situations in which the rules of evidence or 

standards of proof preclude the U.S. government from effectively prosecuting 

a criminal case in U.S. Courts. Because a different evidentiary standard is 

involved in a civil suit, the bill may provide another vehicle for ensuring that 

terrorists do not escape justice.”2 

36.      Likewise, Senator Grassley, one of the sponsors of the bill, 

explained a purpose of ATA’s civil cause of action as follows: 

 

“The United States must take a strong stand against terrorism. The Department 

of State testified that this bill would add to the arsenal of legal tools that can be 

used against those who commit acts of terrorism against U.S. citizens abroad. 

. . . 

Now is the time for action. Now is the time to strengthen our ability to both 

deter and punish acts of terrorism.  

We must make it clear that terrorists’ assets are not welcome in our country. 

And if they are found, terrorists will be held accountable where it hurts them 

most: at their lifeline, their funds.”3 

 

37.         In July 1992, a Senate Committee Report explained that the ATA’s 

treble damages provision “would interrupt, or at least imperil, the flow of money” to 

terrorist organizations.  

38.          In October 1992, Congress enacted ATA’s civil provisions, 

including 18 U.S.C. §2333.  

 

B. The “Material Support” Statutes and Regulations 

 

                                                 

2 Id. 

3 36 Cong. Rec. 26716-26717 (Oct. 1, 1990), https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/GPO-CRECB-1990-

pt19/pdf/GPO-CRECB-1990-pt19-1.pdf.   
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39.    On February 26, 1993, a group of al-Qaeda terrorists detonated a truck 

bomb under the North Tower of the World Trade Center in New York City, attempting 

to cause the collapse of both towers and the death of thousands of Americans.   

40.       Although the damage from the World Trade Center bombing was 

limited, it nevertheless killed six people and injured more than one thousand.  

41.         In response, Congress again took aim at the resources available to 

terrorists in September 1994 and enacted 18 U.S.C. § 2339A, making it a crime to 

provide material support or resources to terrorists, knowing or intending that they 

would be used for terrorist acts.  

42. Tapang and DOES defendants engage in the provision of material 

support of terrorism through their ADF and its agents and soldiers, ad defendants 

conduct through fund raising meetings, declarations for actions which incite 

immediate and imminent hard to innocent civilians, their officially declared aim of 

conduct intimidation and threats against civilians, of kidnappings, and their 

acknowledged kidnappings, killings, of civilians they find non-compliant with their 

civilian goals. Tapang provides expert advice or assistance, personnel, training, and 

service to the ADF and related armed militia who conduct acts of violence, 

intimidation, killings against civilians in the Anglophone regions of Cameroon. 

 

PLAINTIFF SPECIFIC FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS AGAINST 

TAPANG AND HIS ORGANIZATION ADF 

 

43. Plaintiffs, still with a heavy heart from her loss, and mindful that she is 

going up against defendant Tapang, a terrorist, who does not value human life, and 

who has terrorist ADF forces at this disposal, beck and call who may wreck further 

unimaginable pain to her and family at his instructions, however, bravely, by and 

through their undersigned counsel, hereby further specifically allege : 

44. Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of those similarly situated, are the 

surviving children of the victims murdered in the May 20, 2018 terrorist attacks which 

killed plaintiffs’ father and brother in Kumbo, Bui Division, North-West Region, 
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Cameroon. (the "May 20th Attacks") and individuals who suffered personal injuries 

in the May 20th Attacks incited, participated, assisted, contributed materially, 

organized, and supported by defendant Tapang Ivo, as well as all those innocent 

civilians who have suffered similar losses circa October 2016 to present due to the 

conduct and material support of Tapang and his accomplices, ADF, and Doe 

defendants. 

45. Plaintiffs seek such relief against the Tapang Ivo for the attributable acts 

of the Ambazonia Defense Forces and its bodies, alter -egos, and officers, employees 

and agents acting within the scope of their office, employment or agency by Tapang 

knowingly providing material support and resources to the Ambazonia Defense 

Forces terrorist organization and facilitating the May 20th Attacks,  deaths of hundreds 

of others, in that, as set forth in detail herein, he: 

a. Raised, laundered and paid substantial financial support to Ambazonia 

Defense Forces to fund its budget and terrorist activities, including the 

preparation and execution of the May 20th Attacks, and scores of other 

violence, intimidation of civilians, and destruction of property. 

b. Funded the terrorist training camps in the North-West and South-West 

regions of Cameroon where Ambazonia Defense Forces indoctrinated 

and taught their soldiers how to carry out guerilla warfare, intimidation, 

violence, and terrorism against any military or uncooperative or 

unsupportive civilians. 

c. Provided critical logistical support and resources to Ambazonia Defense 

Forces around North-West and South-West regions of Cameroon, 

funding safe houses, transferring Ambazonia Defense Forces money, 

weapons and equipment across international borders and other 

assistance, all of which enabled Ambazonia Defense Forces to conduct 

the May 20th Attacks and kills scores of other civilians; 
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d. Actively supported Ambazonia Defense Forces in its final preparations 

for the May 20th Attacks through a network of the their soldiers, officers, 

and/or agents who met with and aided the ADF killers, providing them 

with money, cover, advice, contacts, transportation, assistance and other 

material support and resources. 

46. Provides expert advice or assistance to the ADF and related organizations 

through his regular Facebook postings, YouTube videos,  which advises the ADF 

fighters how, when, to act, stance to adopt, how to react, and instructions on 

punishments to meter to innocent civilians who don’t obey, including plaintiffs 

parents. 

47. Similar to paragraph 50 above, Tapang provides the afore-noted services 

to the ADF and related organizations as described in paragraph 50. These services also 

recruit “personnel” for the ADF and related organizations, serve as media and public 

relations for the ADF and related organizations and armed militia groups. 

48. Provides ADF and the armed militia with training on how to engage in 

subterfuge, propaganda, to achieve their goals of separation from the Republic of 

Cameroon. 

49. All the above-noted actions are in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2339A, the 

statute that prohibits the provision of material support with the knowledge or intent 

that the support be used to carry out a terrorist attack. 

 

DOCUMENTS AND POSTS BY TAPANG SUPPORTING ALL 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

50. Attached as Exhibit A to this complaint is conduct and postings and 

articles detailing specific conduct and material support by Tapang noted in paragraphs 

43 through 53, that are directed to inciting, and in fact do incite, imminent lawless 

action, with such conduct and speech, not only likely to produce such lawless action, 
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but actually did produce the lawless action, including but not limited to, the May 20th 

attacks where plaintiffs father and brother died, as well as loss of hundreds of innocent 

civilian lives in the North-West and South-West regions, terrorizing students from not 

going to school for over two years and ongoing, from late 2016 to present, disruption 

of business and commercial activities, and instigating fear in all civilians in these 

regions to adhere strictly to the edicts from defendant Tapang and his organization. 

51. Exhibit A reflects plaintiffs’ allegations that Tapang’s conduct, actions, 

and speech intended to incite a violent or lawless action, and that the action was likely 

to imminently occur, and in fact did occur repeatedly, as a result. 

VIDEOS OF TAPANGS CONDUCT AND ACTIONS SUPPORTING 

ALL FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

52. Attached as Exhibit B to this Complaint is the table comprising 37 

separate columns of videos, noting date of video and title of video, illustrating the 

conduct, actions, and speech of Tapang showing his material support of ADF 

terrorism in general, the May 20th attacks, and ongoing, and evidencing his material 

support of training, expert advice or assistance, service, and personnel provided to the 

ADF and related militia. 

 

Ivo Tapang’s knowledge of Ambazonia Defense Forces and its terrorist 

agenda against decedents prior to May 20, 2018 and continuing. 

53. In a wide variety of actions and conduct leading to the attacks on May 

20, 2018, which caused Jane Doe’s father’s death, Ivo Tapang promised death, harm, 

retribution, and injury to any civilians who dared to support the May 20th 

Independence day celebrations of the Republic of Cameroon, as well as since October 

2016, has consistently supported violence, intimidation, and criminal acts against 

civilians who do not strictly abide by his organization’s edicts, such as, “ghost town”, 

where all shops must be closed, and “no schools,” a prohibition against students 

returning to school until his aim of an independent Ambazonia state is achieved. 
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54. At all relevant times mentioned herein, Ivo Tapang: adopted an extremist 

version of secession, seeking violence and terror and kidnappings and intimidation 

against any non-compliant civilian as the means to achieve secession from the 

Republic of Cameroon. 

55. As detailed herein, Ivo Tapang’s ADF agents, partners, and joint venture 

associates, continued to provide material support and resources for Ambazonia 

Defense Forces through late 2016, and including May 20, 2018 to present, combined 

actions that led to plaintiffs parents death, and the deaths of hundreds of others. 

 

Ivo Tapang's tortious acts were a proximate cause of the May 20th Attacks 

and the killings of hundreds of civilians. 

 

56. The planning for the May 20th Attacks began, on information and belief, 

on or about March of 2018, as Tapang decided to forcefully stop and any all May 20th 

( which is Cameroon’s Independence Day ) celebrations in the North-West and South-

West Regions. 

57. Tapang and his accomplices, and DOES defendants, set in motion, a 

series of postings, threats, warnings, to any Anglophone civilian who dares venture 

outside to acknowledge or “celebrate” the 20th of May independence day, that is, 

customarily, a cause of celebration in prior years throughout the Republic of 

Cameroon. 

58. On that fateful day, Jane Doe’s father and brother, being present in 

Kumbo, and having been suspected of being sympathizers to the government of 

Cameroon, were shot down by fighters of ADF for “leaving their home.” 

59. A witness to the incident stated that Jane Doe’s father had been sick for 

a few days, and it was urgent that his son take him to the hospital, and when his 

condition deteriorated drastically on the morning of May 20th, they had no choice but 

to try to seek medical attention and leave their residence. Yet, in using the material 
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support provided by Tapang, ADF fighters mercilessly killed Jane Doe’s father and 

brother as suspected sympathizers of Cameroon’s government and for violating their 

strict edict for no May 20th celebrations.  

60. As detailed herein, at each stage of Ambazonia Defense Forces’ planning 

and execution leading up to the May 20th Attacks, Ivo Tapang knowingly provided 

Ambazonia Defense Forces with support, financing and resources that were material, 

substantial and critical to the success of the May 20th Attacks. 

61. John Doe’s father was killed by Tapang’s ADF because, as they stated 

and posted his dead body in social media groups, he was a traditional ruler and spy of 

the Cameroon government. 

Ivo Tapang's direct funding of ADF 

62. Ivo Tapang is responsible for coordinating and raising substantial 

funding of Ambazonia Defense Forces that was vital to the operation of that terrorist 

organization and its preparations for and realization of the May 20th Attacks, as well 

as all other attacks and killings of innocent civilians from late 2016 to present, 

including but not limited to the following: 

63. Top ranking Ivo Tapang sympathizers made substantial financial 

contributions to Ambazonia Defense Forces; 

64. From 2017 through and including May 20, 2018, Ivo Tapang, acting 

through his agents, joint venture associates, and partners, including Does Defendants 

1-5000, have raised money through meetings, groups, social media, to support their 

ADF fighters and related organizations in executing their stated political aims and 

official positions, which includes terrorism as defined in USC code against innocent 

civilians. Some of these civilians have relatives abroad here in the USA, and their 

death, torture, kidnapping directly affects their USA citizen families. 
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Ivo Tapang's material support of ADF camps used to indoctrinate and 

provide terrorist training for ADF soldiers 

65. Tapang’s ADF fighters and others involved in supporting the May 20th 

Attacks, and the violence and armed separatist groups from late 2016 to present, were 

indoctrinated and given their terrorist training necessary to prepare for and execute 

the May 20th Attacks and other attacks at one or more Ambazonia Defense Forces 

terrorist training camps located in the bushes of the North-West and South-West 

regions, far from where there are roads or easy accessibility.  

66. Prior to and including May 20, 2018, to present, Ivo Tapang provided 

logistical support to Ambazonia Defense Forces in additional ways, as will be 

determined through further investigation, disclosures and discovery of Ivo Tapang. 

 

Ivo Tapang's material support for Ambazonia Defense Forces’ 

planning and execution of the May 20th Attacks, and numerous other 

attacks against innocent civilians, students, and government officials. 

67. Ivo Tapang provided material support and resources for Ambazonia 

Defense Forces and their fighters directly linked to the actual planning and execution 

of the May 20th Attacks, numerous other attacks in hundreds from late 2016 to 

present, attacks against students who seek to go to school, government officials, 

including but not limited to the following: 

i. Fund raising 

j. Using his Facebook posts to provide instructions on strategy, policy, and 

ADF regulations 

k. Recruiting of fighters 

l. Assistance with procuring and providing weapons, equipment, and other 

tangible materials. 

m. Coordination with other separatists groups abroad and in Cameroon 

n. Leadership of the ADF in the USA 
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o. Expert advice and assistance on how to obtain separation by violence and 

force from Cameroon 

p. Assistance with the training of ADF fighters 

q. Using other social media such as email, twitter, Skype, WhatsApp to 

promote ADF violent agenda, plan the dates and times of attacks, and other 

activities in violation of USA laws. 

r. Recruiting of administrative personnel in the USA to assist the ADF in all 

aspects of its goals. 

s. Providing media relations service, coordination services, for the ADF in the 

USA; and so on and forth, without limitation. 

 

Ivo Tapang's domination and control of ADF conduct 

68. As set forth herein, at all relevant times,  Tapang used his position from 

the USA to effectuate all the various services, conduct, and duties, without limitation, 

listed in paragraph 71 above, and paragraphs 43 through 53. 

69. Tapang is the spokesperson of the ADF and de facto leader of the ADF 

in the United States. 

70. Attached as Exhibit C is a selected excerpt from the venerable Human 

Rights Watch, the report section discussing the violence and abuses of armed 

separatist groups like the ADF in Cameroon. 

71. Attached as Exhibit D is chart comprising two hundred ( 200 ) articles, 

posts, references with regards to the crimes, terror, torture, kidnappings, and other 

national and international law violations of the ADF. 

 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION  

TO RECOVER PERSONAL INJURY AND WRONGFUL DEATH 

DAMAGES PURSUANT TO THE ANTI-TERRORISM ACT 

72. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege all of the preceding paragraphs as if fully 

set forth herein. 
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73. This action is brought pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2333(a) for the injuries 

and deaths suffered by U.S. nationals’ parents and siblings in the May 20th Attacks as 

well as other attacks causing plaintiffs harm and injuries. 

74. Those attacks constituted acts of international terrorism pursuant to 18 

U.S.C. §2331 that violated federal and state laws against murder, kidnapping, assault 

and aircraft hijacking, including but not limited to 18 U.S.C. §2332b (prohibiting 

terrorist acts of kidnapping, assault and murder). 

75. Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §2333(a), (d), Ivo Tapang aided and abetted 

Ambazonia Defense Forces through numerous acts detailed herein by knowingly 

providing it with substantial material assistance to prepare and carry out an act or acts 

of international terrorism. 

76. Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §2333(a), (d), Ivo Tapang conspired with 

Ambazonia Defense Forces and others to provide it with substantial material support 

and resources, with the shared understanding, knowledge and intent that said support 

and resources would be used by Ambazonia Defense Forces to prepare and carry out 

an act or acts of international terrorism. 

77. The others in the conspiracy currently known to plaintiffs are not named 

herein, but include Ayaba Cho, Chris Anu, Boh Hebert, Akwanga Ebenezer, Mark 

Bareta, Ikome Sako, Eric Tataw, and others. 

78. Pursuant to §2333(a), Ivo Tapang committed an act or acts of 

international terrorism, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2331(1)(A), in violation of federal 

and state criminal laws, or that would have been a criminal violation if committed 

within the United States or any state, including but not limited to a violation of the 

following: 

 

a. 18 U.S.C. §2(a) — Aiding, abetting, counseling, commanding, inducing 

or procuring a federal crime; 

b. 18 U.S.C. §371 — Conspiring to commit a federal crime; 
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c. 18 U.S.C. §2332b — Conspiring to commit an act of terrorism; 

d. 18 U.S.C. §2339A - Providing material support to terrorists; 

e. 18 U.S.C. §2339C - Prohibitions against the financing of terrorism; 

f. CA Penal Code §31 — Accomplice liability – Aiding and Abetting Law; 

g. CA Penal Code §182 - Criminal Conspiracy  

h. CA Penal Code §32 – Accessory after the fact 

79. Tapang's conduct amounted to a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2(a) because 

Tapang intentionally aided, abetted and counseled the commission of a criminal act 

or acts of international terrorism by Ambazonia Defense Forces, including its 

operatives, by providing the terrorist organization with material support, resources and 

funding with the knowledge that Ambazonia Defense Forces would use such 

assistance to prepare for and commit such a criminal act or acts. 

80. Tapang's conduct amounted to a violation of 18 U.S.C. §371 because it 

conspired with Ambazonia Defense Forces and others to provide it with substantial 

material support and resources with the shared understanding, knowledge and intent 

that said support and resources would be used by Ambazonia Defense Forces to 

prepare for and carry out a criminal act or acts of international terrorism. 

81. Tapang's conduct amounted to a violation of 18 U.S.C. §2339A in that 

on and prior to May 20, 2018, and continuing today, he provides material support or 

resources for Ambazonia Defense Forces and/or conspired with Ambazonia Defense 

Forces and others to provide material support or resources for Ambazonia Defense 

Forces, with the knowledge or intent that they would be used in preparation for, or in 

carrying out a violation of the statutes specified in 18 U.S.C. §2339A, including 18 

U.S.C. §2332b (prohibiting terrorist acts of kidnapping, assault and murder) and 

violation of others laws as itemized in paragraph 80. 

82. Tapang's conduct amounted to a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2339A in that 

it concealed or disguised the nature, location, source, or ownership of Ambazonia 

Defense Forces’ material support or resources and/or conspired with ADF and 

Tapang's agents, Tapang's accomplices, Ambazonia Defense Forces, Ambazonia 
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Defense Forces operatives and sympathizers and others, known and unknown, to 

conceal or disguise the nature, location, source or ownership of Ambazonia Defense 

Forces’ material support or resources, with the knowledge or intent that they would 

be used in preparation for, or in carrying out a violation of the statutes specified in 18 

U.S.C. §2339A, including 18 U.S.C. §2332b (prohibiting terrorist acts of kidnapping, 

assault and murder) and violation of others laws as itemized in paragraph 80. 

83. Tapang's conduct amounted to a violation of relevant state criminal laws 

on facilitating, aiding and abetting a crime, and conspiracy, including but not limited 

to those cited above, in that it: 

a. intentionally aided, abetted and counseled Ambazonia Defense Forces by 

providing it with material support, resources and funding with the 

knowledge that Ambazonia Defense Forces would use such assistance to 

commit an act or acts of international terrorism; and/or 

b. believing it was probably rendering aid in the form of material support 

or resources and funds to Ambazonia Defense Forces to engage in a 

crime, provided Ambazonia Defense Forces with the means or 

opportunity for the commission thereof and which in fact aided 

Ambazonia Defense Forces to commit the May 20th Attacks; and/or all 

other attacks and intimidation on innocent civilians from October 2016 

to present. 

c. conspired with ADF leaders, soldiers, and fighters, particularly the  

Ambazonia Defense Forces, Ambazonia Defense Forces operatives and 

sympathizers and others known and unknown, to violate relevant state 

criminal laws on facilitating and aiding and abetting a crime and 

committing an act or acts of terrorism, including assault, kidnapping and 

murder. 

84. As detailed herein, the aforesaid act or acts of international terrorism: 
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a. involve a violent act or acts dangerous to human life, as demonstrated by 

the known and foreseeable outcomes of injury and death resulting from 

providing substantial assistance to Ambazonia Defense Forces terrorists; 

b. were committed primarily outside the territorial jurisdiction of the United 

States and also transcended national boundaries in terms of the means by 

which they were accomplished, the persons they appear intended to 

intimidate or coerce, and the locales in which their perpetrators operated; 

and 

c. appeared to be intended to intimidate or coerce a civilian population; to 

influence the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion; or, to 

affect the conduct of a government by mass destruction, kidnapping or 

assassination. 

85. The aforesaid acts of Tapang were not mere negligence, but each act 

individually and/or in combination with one or more acts, constituted conduct that was 

intentional, reckless, willful and/or grossly negligent and each of those acts 

individually and/or in combination with one or more of those acts was a proximate 

cause of the May 20th Attacks, other relevant attacks, and the resulting injuries and 

deaths of plaintiffs' parents and brother, as well as that of hundreds of other 

Anglophone Cameroonians.  

86. The May 20th Attacks, other attacks from October 2016 to present, could 

not have occurred absent the knowing and substantial assistance provided to 

Ambazonia Defense Forces by Tapang and those attacks and resulting injuries and 

deaths were a natural, probable and reasonably foreseeable consequence of Tapang's 

conduct. 

87. As a result, the Tapang and all DOES defendants are liable to plaintiffs 

for all damages resulting from the injuries and deaths in the May 20th Attacks, as well 

as the deaths and sufferings of all those similarly situated as plaintiffs. 
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88. Plaintiffs, the surviving family members of each decedent, the decedents 

and their Estates have suffered and will continue to suffer past and future damages as 

a result of the injuries and deaths sustained in the May 20th Attacks and all attacks 

from October 2016 to present, including but not limited to: personal injury damages, 

wrongful death damages, survival damages, economic damages, pecuniary loss, non-

economic damages, pain and suffering, torture, imprisonment, kidnapping, fear of 

impending death, physical trauma, mental anguish, mental distress, grief, loss of 

enjoyment of life, loss of earnings, financial support, services, companionship, care, 

guidance, consortium, burial costs, medical and other expenses and other provable 

damages allowed by law. 

89. WHEREFORE, plaintiffs pray that judgment(s) for relief in the form of 

an award or awards of monetary damages for personal injury, wrongful death, all 

recoverable losses under 28 U.S.C. §2333 and other appropriate relief be entered on 

their first cause of action in favor of the plaintiffs individually and as estate 

representatives and against the defendant Tapang Ivo, with separate awards for each 

plaintiff, where appropriate, plus interest, costs, punitive damages, treble damages, 

attorney's fees, and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION  

FOR PERSONAL INJURY AND WRONGFUL DEATH DAMAGES 

PURSUANT TO STATE TORT LAW 

 

90. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege all of the preceding paragraphs as if fully 

set forth herein. 

91. Prior to and including May 20, 2018, Ivo Tapang: participated and 

associated with Ambazonia Defense Forces in its terrorist agenda as set forth herein; 

provided Ambazonia Defense Forces and its fighters with substantial material support, 

financing and resources; knew that it was assisting a terrorist organization that had 

Case 5:18-cv-07721   Document 1   Filed 12/26/18   Page 26 of 42



 

-25- 

Jane Doe, John Doe v. Ivo Tanku Tapang  Case .No. ___________________ 

Complaint For Damages, Injunction and Declaratory Relief 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

conducted and was actively planning attacks against the United States; and committed 

tortious acts and omissions that were intentional, knowing, reckless, willful, wanton, 

grossly negligent and/or negligent. 

92. Tapang's conduct was a proximate cause of the deaths, injuries and 

resulting damages suffered by plaintiffs, as it furnished the essential support networks, 

cover and funding used by Ambazonia Defense Forces to successfully plan and 

execute the May 20th Attacks, as well as attacks that has killed hundreds of innocent 

civilians. 

93. Tapang tortuously aided and abetted Ambazonia Defense Forces by 

providing substantial assistance in the form of funding, support and resources to 

Ambazonia Defense Forces and its fighters with the knowledge that they planned to 

use such assistance to prepare for and conduct terrorist attacks against innocent 

civilians in Kumbo, Bui Division, North-west region as well as in other parts of 

Anglophone Cameroon, and acted with reckless disregard of the known probable risk 

that such assistance would be used for those terrorist purposes. 

94. Tapang tortuously conspired with Ambazonia Defense Forces and others 

to provide Ambazonia Defense Forces and its fighters with substantial material 

support and resources, with the shared agreement, understanding, knowledge and 

intent that said support and resources would be used by Ambazonia Defense Forces 

to plan and carry out terrorist acts against the United States. 

95. Despite such knowledge, Ivo Tapang intentionally and/or recklessly 

failed to properly supervise its ADF soldiers, fighters, officers, and agents and to stop 

them from using Ivo Tapang's resources, but rather desired to provide substantial 

assistance to Ambazonia Defense Forces, despite the known and/or foreseeable risk 

that such assistance was being used by Ambazonia Defense Forces to prepare and 

conduct a terrorist attack on May 20th, as well as other dates, resulting in plaintiffs 

harm. 
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96. Moreover, Ivo Tapang intentionally and/or recklessly selected, hired and 

retained as its ADF fighters, soldiers, officers, agents, and various individuals, and 

others, who Ivo Tapang knew were Ambazonia Defense Forces operatives or 

sympathizers, despite the known and/or foreseeable risk that these persons and agents 

would use and/or were using their positions to provide substantial assistance to 

Ambazonia Defense Forces to prepare and conduct the May 20th attacks, as well as 

other attacks against innocent civilians in the Anglophone regions. 

97. The aforesaid intentional, criminal, knowing, reckless, willful, wanton, 

grossly negligent and/or negligent acts and/or omissions of Ivo Tapang were 

individually and/or in combination with one or more of those acts and/or omissions a 

proximate, a substantial cause of the May 20th Attacks, as well as other attacks, and 

the plaintiffs' injuries, deaths and resulting damages. 

98. WHEREFORE, plaintiffs pray that judgment(s) for relief in the form of 

an award or awards of monetary damages for personal injury, wrongful death and 

other appropriate relief be entered on their second cause of action in favor of the 

plaintiffs individually and as estate representatives and against the defendant Tapang 

Ivo, with separate awards for each plaintiff, where appropriate, plus interest, costs, 

punitive damages, treble damages, attorney's fees, and such other relief as the Court 

deems just and proper. 

 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION  

FOR PERSONAL INJURY AND WRONGFUL DEATH DAMAGES 

PURSUANT TO THE ALIEN TORT CLAIMS ACT 

 

99. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege all of the preceding paragraphs as if fully 

set forth herein. 
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100. The Alien Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §1350, allows aliens to sue for 

torts committed in violation of the law of nations, international law or a treaty of the 

United States. 

101. The conduct of Tapang as detailed herein to provide substantial material 

support, resources and sponsorship for Ambazonia Defense Forces and its acts of 

international terrorism resulting in the May 20th Attacks and all other attacks in 

Cameroon from October 2016 to present constitutes a clear violation of the law of 

nations and international law, which includes international legal norms prohibiting 

crimes against humanity, mass murder, genocide, torture, extrajudicial killing, air 

piracy, financing of terrorism, and terrorism, which can be found in and derived from, 

among other things, the following conventions, agreements, U.N. declarations and 

resolutions, and other documents: 

a. Charter of the International Military Tribunal, Aug. 8, 1945, 59 Stat. 

1544, 82 U.N.T.S. 279; 

b. Allied Control Council Law No. 10 (Dec. 20, 1945); 

c. Convention on the Prevention and Punishment of the Crime of Genocide, 

Dec. 9 1948, 78 U.N.T.S. 277; 

d. Geneva Convention (IV) Relative to the Protection of Civilian Persons 

in Time of War, Aug. 12, 1949, 75 U.N.T.S. 287; 

e. Hague Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Seizure of Aircraft 

(Hijacking), Dec. 16, 1970, 22 U.S.T. 1641, 860 U.N.T.S. 105; 

f. International Convention for the Suppression of Terrorist Bombings, 

Dec. 15, 1997, 2149 U.N.T.S. 284 (entered into force May 23, 2001); 

g. International Convention for the Suppression of the Financing of 

Terrorism, Dec. 9, 1999, 2178 U.N.T.S. 229 (entered into force Apr. 10, 

2002); 

h. U.N. Security Council Resolution 1267, U.N. Doc. S/RES/1267 (Oct. 15, 

1999); 

i. U.N. Security Council Resolution 1373, U.N. Doc. S/RES/1373 (Sept. 

28, 2001); 

j. Protocol Additional (I) to the Geneva Conventions of 12 August 1949, 

and Relating to the Protection of Victims of International Armed 

Conflict, June 8, 1977, 1125 U.N.T.S. 3; 
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k. Protocol Additional (II) to the Geneva Conventions of 12 August 1949, 

and Relating to the Protection of Victims of Non-International Armed 

Conflicts, June 8, 1977, 1125 U.N.T.S. 609; 

l. Statute of the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia 

(ICTY), in Report of the Secretary-General pursuant to paragraph 2 of 

S.C. Res.808, May 3, 1993, U.N. Doc. 8/25704, adopted unanimously by 

S.C. Res. 827, U.N. SCOR, 48th Sess., 3217th mtg., 16, U.N. Doc. 

S/PV.3217 (1993); 

m. The Convention on the Prevention and Punishment of Crimes Against 

International Protected Persons, Including Diplomatic Agents, 28 U.S.T. 

1975, T.I.A.S. No. 8532 (1977), implemented in 18 U.S.C. § 1121; 

n. The General Assembly Resolutions on Measures to Prevent International 

Terrorism, G.A. Res. 40/61 (1985) and G.A. Res. 42/159 (1987); and 

o. The Convention on the High Seas, April 29, 1958, arts. 14-22 (piracy), 

13 U.S.T. 2312, 450 U.N.T.S. 11. 

 

102. Tapang's conduct was a substantial cause of the May 20th Attacks and 

all other attacks from October 2016 to present against innocent civilians in the North 

West and South West regions, and the plaintiffs' injuries, deaths and resulting 

damages. 

 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION  

        FOR RICO (18 U.S.C. § 1962(C))   

103. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference all prior paragraphs of 

this Complaint and paragraphs in the counts below as though set forth fully herein. 

104. Tapang and all Does Defendants 1 – 5000 (collectively “Defendants”) 

are all “persons” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(3). At all relevant times, 

Defendants conducted the affairs of an Enterprise—which affected interstate and 

foreign commerce—through a pattern of racketeering activity, in violation of 18 

U.S.C. § 1962(c). 

A. ADF is the Racketeering Enterprise 

105. ADF is a Racketeering Enterprise, as that term is used in 18 U.S.C. § 

1961(4). The Enterprise was formed by January of 2017.  
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106. ADF had an ongoing organizational framework for carrying out its 

objectives. 

107. As described above, Tapang and each DOES Defendant participated in 

the operation or management of the Enterprise. 

108. Because ADF raises hundreds of thousands of dollars to support their 

terrorist operations in Cameroon, by contacting sympathetic USA based Anglophone 

Cameroon natives, it affects interstate and foreign commerce. 

109. Tapang and each DOES Defendant conducted and/or participated in the 

affairs of the Enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity, including acts 

indictable under 18 U.S.C. §2(a) — Aiding, abetting, counseling, commanding, 

inducing or procuring a federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §371 — Conspiring to commit a 

federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §2332b — Conspiring to commit an act of terrorism; 18 

U.S.C. §2339A - Providing material support to terrorists; 18 U.S.C. §2339C - 

Prohibitions against the financing of terrorism; without limitation. 

 

B. Alternatively, and at the Very Least, ADF Was Part of an 

Association-In-Fact Enterprise 

110. Alternatively, and at the very least, ADF was part of an Association-In-

Fact Enterprise comprising Tapang and DOES defendants, ADF, and similar 

organizations. . The Association-In-Fact Enterprise was formed by at least January 

2017. From that time until present, the members of the Association-In-Fact Enterprise 

worked together to further their mutual goals of separation from the Republic of 

Cameroon to form an Ambazonia state, using guerilla tactics, terrorism, providing 

material support to ADF fighters and related organizations, violence and intimidation 

of Anglophone Cameroonians who do not support their political aims, kidnappings, 

and other evil atrocities. 
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111. The Association-In-Fact Enterprise has an ongoing organizational 

framework for carrying out its objectives. In fact, the Association-In-Fact Enterprise 

could not have carried out its intricate task of sharing confidential information at the 

moments when it would be most beneficial to ADF unless it had some structure for 

making and communicating group decisions. The Association-In-Fact knows how to 

reach its ADF fighters, agents, camps to provide instructions on what carnage to 

execute on designated dates and times, including the May 20th attacks. 

112. As described above, each Defendant participated in the operation or 

management of the Association-In-Fact Enterprise, and benefitted financially from the 

enterprise. 

113. Because the Association-In-Fact Enterprise’s activities including the 

raising of funds from Cameroon native sympathizers across the 50 states of the USA, 

using interstate transportation and communications, traveling interstate to give 

speeches, incite support, obtain goods and services for the ADF based operatives in 

Cameroon, it affected interstate and foreign commerce. 

C. RICO Predicate Acts 

114. Each Defendant conducted and/or participated in the affairs of ADF and 

the Association-In-Fact Enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity, 

including acts indictable under 18 U.S.C. §2(a) — Aiding, abetting, counseling, 

commanding, inducing or procuring a federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §371 — Conspiring to 

commit a federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §2332b — Conspiring to commit an act of 

terrorism; 18 U.S.C. §2339A - Providing material support to terrorists; 18 U.S.C. 

§2339C - Prohibitions against the financing of terrorism; without limitation. 

115. Additional facts, conduct, actions, of Tapang and DOES defendants, 

including ADF, acting jointly, and in concert with each other, are as noted in the 

Exhibit A and Exhibit B documents listed with links to the videos, as well as videos 

listed, with hyperlinks to the videos.  
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C. RICO Damages 

116. Plaintiff has been injured by Defendants’ violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

1962(c). Defendants caused enormous harm to Plaintiff, as described above. All of 

these injuries occurred within the United States. 

 

                FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

FOR RICO CONSPIRACY (18 U.S.C. § 1962(D)) 

117. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference all prior paragraphs of 

this Complaint and paragraphs in the counts below as though set forth fully herein. 

118. Defendants conspired with each other to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c). 

Defendants knowingly agreed, combined, and conspired to conduct the affairs of the 

Enterprise or the Association-In-Fact Enterprise through ADF operations, Interim 

Government (“IG”) operations, Southern Cameroons Defense Forces (SOCADEF) 

operations, and the like. Each Defendant agreed that the operation would involve 

repeated violations of 18 U.S.C. §2(a) — Aiding, abetting, counseling, commanding, 

inducing or procuring a federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §371 — Conspiring to commit a 

federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §2332b — Conspiring to commit an act of terrorism; 18 

U.S.C. §2339A - Providing material support to terrorists; 18 U.S.C. §2339C - 

Prohibitions against the financing of terrorism; without limitation Defendants’ 

conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) violated § 1962(d). 

119. Plaintiffs have been injured by Defendants’ violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

1962(d). Plaintiffs have been injured by Defendants’ violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c). 

Defendants caused enormous harm to Plaintiff’s. All of these injuries occurred within 

the United States. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

LIABILITY FOR AIDING AND ABETTING ACTS OF 

INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 2333(a)  
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120. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation of the foregoing 

paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.  

121. Tapang and ADF have committed, planned, or authorized activities that 

involved violence or acts dangerous to human life that are a violation of the criminal 

laws of the United States, or that would be a criminal violation if committed within 

the jurisdiction of the United States, including inter alia the prohibition on killing, 

attempting to kill, causing serious bodily injury, or attempting to cause serious bodily 

injury, as set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 2332, as well as crimes of assault, battery, criminal 

conspiracy. 

122.  These activities committed, planned, or authorized by Tapang and his 

ADF appear to have been, and were intended to: (a) intimidate or coerce the civilian 

populations of Cameroon; (b) influence the policy of the Government of Cameroon 

by intimidation or coercion; or (c) affect the conduct of the Governments Cameroon, 

France, the United States and other countries by violence, destruction of property, 

killings of government officials, kidnapping, and intimidation. 

123. These activities committed, planned, or authorized by Tapang and ADF 

occurred partially outside of the territorial jurisdiction of the United States and 

constituted acts of international terrorism as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2331(1). 

124. Plaintiffs have been injured in their person by reason of the acts of 

international terrorism committed, planned, or authorized by Tapang and ADF. 

125. At all times relevant to this action, Defendant Tapang knew that ADF 

was an Organization, that it had engaged in and continued to engage in illegal acts of 

terrorism, including international terrorism. 

126. Defendants knowingly provided substantial assistance and 

encouragement to ADF and related armed groups and militia in Cameroon, and thus 

aided and abetted ADF and these armed separatists groups in committing, planning, 
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or authorizing acts of international terrorism, including the acts of international 

terrorism that injured Plaintiffs. 

127. By aiding and abetting ADF and related armed groups and militia in 

Cameroon in committing, planning, or authorizing acts of international terrorism, 

including acts that caused each of the Plaintiffs to be injured in his or her person and 

property, Defendants are liable pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2333(a) and (d) for threefold 

any and all damages that Plaintiffs have sustained as a result of such injuries, and the 

costs of this suit, including attorney’s fees. 

 

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

LIABILITY FOR CONSPIRING IN FURTHERANCE OF ACTS OF 

INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 2333(a)  

 

128. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation of the foregoing 

paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.  

129. Defendant Tapang knowingly agreed, licensed, and permitted ADF and 

its affiliates to register and use Defendants’ platform, Facebook posts, WhatsApp 

account, twitter, phone communications, financial support, fundraising, conduct, 

actions, participations, and other services to promote and carry out ADF’s activities, 

including ADF’s illegal acts of international terrorism that injured Plaintiffs.  

130. Defendant Tapang were aware that U.S. federal law prohibited providing 

material support and resources to, or engaging in transactions with, terrorist 

organizations and/or engaging in acts constituting international terrorism.  

131. Defendant Tapang thus conspired with ADF in its illegal provision of 

Defendants’ platform, Facebook posts, WhatsApp account, twitter, phone 

communications, and conduct, financial support, fundraising, actions, participations 

other services to promote and carry out ADF’s illegal acts of international terrorism, 

including the acts that injured Plaintiffs.  
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132. By conspiring with ADF in furtherance of ADF’s committing, planning, 

or authorizing acts of international terrorism, including acts that caused each of the 

Plaintiffs to be injured in his or her person and property, Tapang is liable pursuant to 

18 U.S.C. § 2333(a) and (d) for threefold any and all damages that Plaintiffs have 

sustained as a result of such injuries, and the costs of this suit, including attorney’s 

fees.  

 

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

PROVISION OF MATERIAL SUPPORT TO TERRORISTS  

IN VIOLATION OF 18 U.S.C. § 2339A AND 18 U.S.C. § 2333  

 

133. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation of the foregoing 

paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.  

134. Tapang’s conduct of fundraising activities for the ADF, instructions to 

organize violence in Cameroon,  platform, Facebook posts, WhatsApp account, 

twitter, phone communications, and conduct, financial support, fundraising, actions, 

participations, other services to promote and carry out, substantially assisted ADF and 

other armed separatist groups in carrying out its terrorist activities, including 

recruiting, radicalizing, and instructing terrorists, raising funds, creating fear and 

carrying out attacks, among other things.  

135. Through his actions, Tapang has also provided personnel to ADF and 

related armed separatist groups by making Tapang and his ADF leaders, members, 

and potential new recruits available to each other for mutual help, assistance, 

encouragement, sharing of information, services, and expert advice or assistance. 

136. These services, equipment, and personnel constituted material support 

and resources pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2339A, and they facilitated acts of terrorism in 

violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2332 that caused the death of Plaintiff’s parents and injuries 

to Plaintiffs.  
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137. Tapang provided these services, equipment, and personnel to ADF and 

related armed separatist groups, knowing that they were to be used in preparation for, 

or in carrying out, criminal acts including the acts that injured the Plaintiffs.  

138. As set forth more fully above, but for the material support and resources 

provided by Defendants, the attack that injured the Plaintiffs would not have occurred. 

139. By committing violations of 18 U.S.C. § 2339A that have caused the 

Plaintiffs to be injured in his or her person, business or property, Defendants are liable 

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2333 for any and all damages that Plaintiffs have sustained as 

a result of such injuries.  

 

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS  

 

140. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each of the foregoing allegations with the 

same force and effect as if more fully set forth herein.  

141. Tapang engaged in negligent behavior by providing services, material 

support, training, expert advice or assistance, personnel, social media platform, other 

media communications, to ADF and related armed separatist groups. 

142. Tapang’s acts of providing the aforenoted actions to ADF and other 

armed separatist groups constituted a willful violation of federal statutes, and thus 

amounted to a willful violation of a statutory standard.  

143. As a direct, foreseeable and proximate result of the conduct of Tapang as 

alleged herein above, Plaintiffs has suffered severe emotional distress, and therefore 

Tapang is liable to the Plaintiffs for Plaintiffs’ severe emotional distress and related 

damages. 

 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants on all Counts, 

and seeks such relief as specified below for all Counts for which such relief is provided 

by law: 

a) Awarding Plaintiff damages in an amount to be determined at trial; 

b) Awarding Plaintiff compensatory and treble damages, as available, in an 

amount to be proven at trial; 

c) Awarding Plaintiff the financial gain earned by Defendants as a consequence 

of the violations described herein; 

d) Awarding Plaintiff statutory damages, as available; 

e) Awarding Plaintiff punitive damages, as available; 

f) Issuing a Declaration that: defendant Tapang’s conduct, and that of DOES 

defendants, and like sympathizers, who assist with providing material support 

to ADF and similar organization attacks on innocent civilians is a violation of 

USA ant-terrorism act laws.  

g) Issuing an Injunction, including a preliminary injunction,: restraining 

Tapang and his agents, fighters, organization, and those acting in active 

concert or participation with him from: engaging in conduct as alleged in this 

Complaint, and principally the material support of terrorism in Cameroon, and 

including, but not limited to an injunction against engaging in these crimes: 18 

U.S.C. §2(a) — Aiding, abetting, counseling, commanding, inducing or 

procuring a federal crime; 18 U.S.C. §371 — Conspiring to commit a federal 

crime; 18 U.S.C. §2332b — Conspiring to commit an act of terrorism; 18 

U.S.C. §2339A - Providing material support to terrorists; 18 U.S.C. §2339C - 

Prohibitions against the financing of terrorism; kidnapping, assault, battery, 

murder, destruction of property, civilian intimidation and threats, without 

limitation.  
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h) Awarding Plaintiff all costs and attorneys’ fees to the full extent permitted 

under the applicable law; 

i) Awarding Plaintiff pre- and post-judgment interest as permitted by law; 

j) Awarding any other relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

k) That the Court, sua sponte, with its inherent Constitutional and Statutory 

powers to ensure justice, and to help save lives and pain and sufferings of 

similar plaintiffs within its jurisdiction: 

a. Refer this matter to the terrorism units of the FBI with jurisdiction over 

this defendant Tapang who lives and works within the San Jose 

community, with most persons oblivious to his true person, as his 

conduct and actions present a clear and present danger of imminent 

terrorism that harms US citizens, for investigations and assessment 

consistent with the allegations herein; 

b. Refer this matter to the terrorism units of the California State and local 

police with jurisdiction over the defendant Tapang, as his conduct and 

actions present a clear and present danger of terrorism imminent that 

harms US citizens, for investigations and assessment consistent with the 

allegations herein; 

c. Refer this defendant Tapang, an immigrant, to the United States 

Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”), Immigration and Customs 

Enforcement, and other related DHS agencies, for immediate 

investigation and assessment to determine whether his conduct and 

actions present a clear and present danger of imminent terrorism that 

harms US citizens, for investigations consistent with the allegations 

herein; 

d. All other actions which this Court deems appropriate to prevent terrorist 

acts emanating from Tapang harming US citizens and residents. 
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JURY DEMAND 

 

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff demands 

trial by jury in this action of all issues so triable. 

 

Date: December 26, 2018 Respectfully Submitted, 

EMMANUEL NSAHLAI 

 

By: ___________/S/________________ 

NSAHLAI LAW FIRM 

 

EMMANUEL NSAHLAI, SBN (207588) 

email: nsahlai.e@nsahlailawfirm.com  

3250 WILSHIRE BLVD, STE 1500 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90010 

Tel (213) 797-0369 

Fax (213) 973-4617 

 

Attorney for Plaintiffs 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on December 26, 2018, I directed that the foregoing 

document be electronically filed with the Clerk of the Court by using the CM/ECF 

system, and 

[X] (By U.S. Mail) I deposited such envelope in the mail at Los Angeles, CA 

on December 26, 2018 with postage thereon fully prepaid. I am aware that on motion 

of the party served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage 

meter date is more than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit. 

 

 Defendant 

IVO TANKU TAPANG 

5055 DENT AVE APT 97 

SAN JOSE, CA 95118-2288 

 

 

 

By:_______/S/______________ 

EMMANUEL NSAHLAI 
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ACTION,  PARTICIPATION IN THE MATERIAL SUPPORT OF CRIMES, 
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RESIDENCE IN THE USA  ) 
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84 What is Tapang Ivo Tanku's position in regards to this struggle_ https://clip-clip.org/video/KcH7YoAY4jc/what-is-tapang-ivo-tanku-s-position-in-regards-to-this-struggle.html 5
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http://terrorism.trendolizer.com/2017/09/tapang-ivo-tanku-official-video-showing-president-trump-meeting-with-non-terrorist.html
http://buffalo.academia.edu/TapangIvoTanku
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Tapang_Tanku
https://straightnews.ng/tag/tapang-ivo-tanku
https://www.amba-medias.com/tag/tapang-ivo-tanku-biography/
https://ambaland.com/tag/tapang-ivo-tanku-latest-news/
https://www.thclips.net/rev/tapang+ivo+tanku+latest+news/
https://www.thvideos.net/video/0IgMBudIagE/tapang-ivo-tanku.html
https://icutube.co/src?q=tapang+ivo+tanku
https://www.camerounweb.com/CameroonHomePage/features/Tapang-Ivo-Tanku-le-commanditeur-des-kidnappings-de-pr-fets-423670
https://ambaland.com/tapang-ivo-tanku-federation-with-la-republic-is-a-sell-out-to-the-people-of-ambaland/
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http://mirchihd.com/video/Tapang-ivo
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Sr youtube link title date   Published

1 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NcG3u5YGulI TAPANG IVO SPIT FIRE- CARRY THE GAME NOW TO DOUALA & YAOUNDE 18-Nov-18

2 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XEv9jFrfny8

Tapang Ivo Tanku: UPDATES ON THE KIDNAPPINGS IN AMBAZONIA

 Nov 6, 2018

3 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1Wvjxb5gpAQ Tapang Ivo Tanku REVEALED THE KIDNAPPER OF THE 11 STUDENTS IN PSS NKWEN5-Nov-18

4 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KFQanO-D0PI TAPANG IVO-BAYESA BOYS,Victoria, Buea, Lebialem, Ngie, Muyuka, Santa, Pinyin,Bali Nyonga.STAY TUNE31-May-18

5 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FTmbzJhwVQ4 TAPANG IVO response to ERIC TATAW,NALOVA BIH & TALK ABOUT TASSANG WILFRED Nov 19, 2018

6 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0IgMBudIagE Tapang Ivo Tanku live with Christoph Hans a pro-Ambazonian - Ambazonia Struggle  Oct 19, 2018

7 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mbjOPrGQg7g TAPANG IVO . PLAN FOR OCTOBER 1ST. 29-Sep-17

8 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0moN7nTVsSM ADF Spokesman Tapang Ivo Tanku Welcomes New Defense groups into the Struggle 13-Sep-18

9 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-gMwLFAYzdA General Tapang Ivo Live Rebroadcast Today August 9th 2018! Watch..  Aug 9, 2018

10 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dYUHOKHWcjw Tapang Ivo YESTERDAY gofundme & TAPANG IVO today RESTORATION. 17-Jul-18

11 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=583mfrYOqhg Atam Milan talks on Mark Bareta and Tapang Ivo Tanku 19-Jun-17

12 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=q_aGTDhS3tc Ambazonia defense Forces briefings with spokesman Tapang Ivo Tanku 29-Aug-18

13 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hM653m0oQrk Ambazonia Defense Force (ADF) - Ayaba Cho’s freedom fighters with General IVO talks on UNITY17-Jul-18

14 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nWCHhcg-4fU Tapang Ivo explains why his facebook profile is blocked 25-Dec-16

15 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NL9ZzrCuqeA A Date With Tapang Ivo, Get to Know Him as he talks about the Ambazonian Struggle  Nov 11, 2018

16 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qtzMyRrcVZ4 THE OTHER SIDE OF TAPANG IVO YOU NEVER KNEW  Nov 15, 2018

17 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YP7j_ZF8uOE GENERAL TAPANG IVO HIT THE US AMBASSADOR AND BIYA GOVT WITH A SMART MOVE22-May-18

18 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-QKfPvDb52E AYABA AND TAPANG IVO THIS ARE SOME BEAUTIFUL MESSAGE FOR YOU TO CONSUME Sep 26, 2018

19 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=v2nww2NjG1s Consortium Officials Dismiss Tapang Ivo and Mark Bara for Gross Misconduct, Threatening Struggle6-Apr-17

20 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sRjXE8JH37o Tapang Tanku on Red Dragons: How To Start & Win A War! 13-May-18

21 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0KNqvZfdsZM Tapang Ivo on I was well recognized in the entire company. I came out # 1! See  Apr 8, 2018

22 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KcH7YoAY4jc What is Tapang Ivo Tanku's position in regards to this struggle? 7-Apr-17

23 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=u511HKkjxMk Why was Tapang Ivo Tanku taken to court by Theodore CEO of cryOutTV  Mar 1, 2018

24 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_4Q8mLyrYR8 TAPANG IVO .AMBAZONIAN STRUGGLE -NEW STRATEGY.LRC PLEASE SURRENDER3-Sep-18

25 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QbSr8QbCOFg Mothers message to Ayaba Cho, Tapang Ivo, Mark Berata as war of words roll  Sep 21, 2018

26 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uFotFkkEImA Mothers message to Ayaba Cho, Tapang Ivo, Mark Berata as war of words roll 21-Sep-18

27 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RunF6_YMZ1o The Anglophone Strike How Far? - Tapang Ivo Tanku 29-Nov-16

28 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0K-tW_g3UpI Tapang Ivo OUR FREEDOM WILL COME AT ALL COST 4-Mar-18

29 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rlzrV_TNN0A

Few months ago, he was on Tapang Ivo Tanku in a very rude way. Today, he took 

on....... 25-Feb-18

30 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JIz8n1ZYcRE Part III - Tapang Ivo Tanku "One voice, mixed messages: Anglophone request" 4-Dec-16

31 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uccw8mKOFZw&list=PLHgVUHLNOjkQyu5FDnSFNbK3lDGVkO75NCAPTURONS LE CRIMINEL PAUL BIYA MORT OU VIF  Aug 16, 2016

32 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RunF6_YMZ1o&list=PLHgVUHLNOjkQyu5FDnSFNbK3lDGVkO75NThe Anglophone Strike How Far? - Tapang Ivo Tanku 29-Nov-16

33 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bxfnzu1LmDU ERIC TATAW,TAPANG IVO & MARK BARETA TALK TO AMBAZONIANS & BRING PEACE AS WAY FORWARD,GOOD INITIATIVE19-Nov-18

34 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dtyUoZBpnrg Part I - Boosting communication and winning propaganda by Tapang Ivo Tanku 6-Jan-17

35 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YSMzcOT5dXc Tapang Ivo Tanku in his usual address to the people of Southern Cameroons 9-Aug-17

36 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=F4gf4BSf1qg TAPANG IVO-AMBAZONIA MUST BE FREE DESPITE LRC ADMISSION INTO THE UN HUMAN RIGHTS COUNCIL Oct 15, 2018

37 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=suLQgS67gkM urgent TAPANG IVO SPIT FIRE HEAD OF RED DRAGONS AND UPDATE OF THE STRUGGLE Apr 23, 2018
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(DOCUMENTS AND VIDEOS EVIDENCING AMBAZONIA DEFENSE FORCES 
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CIVILIANS  ) 
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EXHIBIT D 
(EXCERPT FROM HUMAN RIGHTS WATCH REPORT ISBN: 978-1-6231-36352 

REPORT TITLED “THESE KILLINGS CAN BE STOPPED”, RELEVANT 

PORTIONS “ABUSES BY ARMED SEPARATIST GROUPS” AT PAGES 19 

THROUGH 28 ) 

Case 5:18-cv-07721   Document 1-1   Filed 12/26/18   Page 21 of 24



Tables 

Sr# Description link no of pages

1 #ambazonia hashtag on Twitter https://twitter.com/hashtag/ambazonia?lang=en 12

2 ‗Cryptocurrency is Freedom!‘ — Exclusive Interview with Ambazonian Secessionists https://finance.yahoo.com/news/cryptocurrency-freedom-exclusive-interview-ambazonian-181525427.html 7

3 ‗The Old Don‘t Let Go‘_ 36 Years of Rocky ‗Stability‘ in Paul Biya‘s Cameroon https://www.worldpoliticsreview.com/articles/26205/the-old-don-t-let-go-36-years-of-rocky-stability-in-paul-biya-s-cameroon 1

4 ―Ambazonia_‖ Africa‘s new separatist war is destabilizing Cameroon https://www.eluniversal.com.mx/english/ambazonia-africas-new-separatist-war-destabilizing-cameroon 7

5 17 kidnapped Cameroon university students freed in restive Anglophone region – African Daily Voice https://africandailyvoice.com/en/2018/12/13/kidnapped-cameroon-university-students-freed-restive-anglophone-region/ 2

6 50,000 Villagers Trapped As Military Battles ‗Ambazonia‘ Fighters _ CameroonPostline https://cameroonpostline.com/50000-villagers-trapped-as-military-battles-ambazonia-fighters/ 4

7  (172) Pinterest https://www.pinterest.com/pin/554646510351402433/?lp=true 2

8 10 POINTS FOR AMBAZONIA INDEPENDENCE BY A GERMAN ACTIVIST _ Bamenda Online mendaonline.net/10-points-for-ambazonia-independence-by-a-german-activist/ 4

9 81 police, soldiers killed in Cameroon's anglophone crisis_ govt _ News24 https://www.news24.com/Africa/News/81-police-soldiers-killed-in-cameroons-anglophone-crisis-govt-20180620 5

10 A documentary by TV5 Monde on Ambazonia Defense Forces(ADF) of Ayaba Cho Lucas - pachar https://charlesfonfon.skyrock.com/3314060296-A-documentary-by-TV5-Monde-on-Ambazonia-Defense-Forces-ADF-of-Ayaba.html 2

11 Abuses by Government and Separatist Groups in Cameroon‘s Anglophone Regions _ HRW https://www.hrw.org/report/2018/07/19/these-killings-can-be-stopped/abuses-government-and-separatist-groups-cameroons 36

12 Activity – Matilda – THE VOICE OF THE AMBAZONIANS http://myambazonias.com/members/matilda/activity/2158/ 8

13 Adamaoua _ Un combattant de l'Ambazonia Defense force arrêté dans le May-Banyo https://chateaunews.com/fr/2018/05/19/adamaoua-un-combattant-de-lambazonia-defense-force-arrete-dans-le-may-banyo/ 2

14 Adewale Maja-Pearce · Prospects for Ambazonia · LRB 25 October 2018 https://www.lrb.co.uk/v40/n20/adewale-maja-pearce/prospects-for-ambazonia 7

15 AFR1784812018ENGLISH.PDF 40

16 Africa‘s next civil war could be in Cameroon - The Washington Post https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/worldviews/wp/2018/05/30/africas-next-civil-war-could-be-in-cameroon/?noredirect=on&utm_term=.648c8e75f… 3

17 Africawatch-March-15-2018-vol18 6

18 Aftermath of the confrontation between cameroon‘s military and Secessionist group_ https://e-kwat.com/aftermath-of-the-confrontation-between-cameroons-military-and-secessionist-group/ 6

19 AMBALAND_ROADMAP_TO_INDEPENDENCE 16

20 Ambazonia - Wikipedia https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ambazonia 11

21 Ambazonia (1983_ Doomsday) _ Alternative History _ FANDOM powered by Wikia http://althistory.wikia.com/wiki/Ambazonia_(1983:_Doomsday) 3

22 Ambazonia _ Africa Times https://africatimes.com/tag/ambazonia/ 2

23 Ambazonia _ Federal Republic of Southern Cameroon https://fotw.info/flags/cm_ambaz.html 4

24 Ambazonia Crisis_ French Cameroun army opens a Third Front – Cameroon Intelligence Report http://www.cameroonintelligencereport.com/ambazonia-crisis-french-cameroun-army-opens-a-third-front/ 4

25 Ambazonia defence force Archives - The Village Square Journal https://www.villagesquarejournal.com/tag/ambazonia-defence-force/ 2

26 Ambazonia Defence Force deny kidnap of foreigners - Journal du Cameroun (https://www.journalducameroun.com/en/cameroon-sonara-resumes-production/) 5

27 Ambazonia Defence Forces – NEWUH'S BLOG https://newuh.blog/tag/ambazonia-defence-forces/ 2

28 Ambazonia Defence Forces - Wikipedia https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ambazonia_Defence_Forces 1

29 Ambazonia Defence Forces (Southern Cameroons Defence Forces)_ Cameroon _ Terrorist Groups _ TRAC https://www.trackingterrorism.org/group/ambazonia-defence-forces-southern-cameroons-defence-forces-cameroon 9

30 Ambazonia Defence Forces _ Pan African TV http://panafricantvonline.com/tag/ambazonia-defence-forces/ 2

31 Ambazonia Defence Forces _ Revolvy 1

32 Ambazonia defence forces Archives - BaretaNews https://www.bareta.news/tag/ambazonia-defence-forces/ 4

33 Ambazonia Defence Forces claim responsibility for kidnapping government official in Cameroon's Nord-Ouest _ Jane's 360 https://www.janes.com/article/78243/ambazonia-defence-forces-claim-responsibility-for-kidnapping-government-official-in-cameroon-s-nord-ouest 2

34 Ambazonia Defense Force ADF‘s General IVO of Ayabacho – EDUCATING THE PEOPLE 2 – AMBALAND https://ambaland.com/ambazonia-defense-force-adfs-general-ivo-of-ayabacho-educating-the-people-2/ 14

35 Ambazonia Defense Force commander; Cho Ayaba, threatens that Ambazonian Army boys will come to major cities in the French speaking regions[watch video] _ BETA TINZhttp://www.betatinz.com/2018/05/ambazonia-defense-force-anglophobe-crisis-cho-ayaba.html 4

36 Ambazonia Defense Forces (ADF) _ Regional Press Agency https://apr-news.fr/en/mots-cles/ambazonia-defense-forces-adf 2

37 Ambazonia forces kill Cameroon marine, four para-military officers, kidnap assistant mayor - Army - BBC News Pidgin https://www.bbc.com/pidgin/tori-45216542 7

38 Ambazonia Governing Council - About https://www.agcfreeambazonia.org/cms.php?id_cms=71 4

39 Ambazonia Governing Council - La Republique du Cameroun_ 1961 to Today https://www.agcfreeambazonia.org/cms.php?id_cms=16 6

40 Ambazonia lose 21 fighters, two army die for fresh gun battle - BBC News Pidgin https://www.bbc.com/pidgin/tori-45319282 6

41 #VALUE! https://ambaland.com/ambazonia-military-council-amc-at-the-front-line-ambazonia-struggle/ 16

42 Ambazonia Motorcyle attacks have killed 27 soldiers- Atanga Nji - Journal du Cameroun 5

43 Ambazonia Redemption (@WestCameroons) _ Twitter https://twitter.com/westcameroons?lang=en 9

44 Ambazonia Soldiers on the ground to protect their territory. – Southern Cameroons Community Germany http://www.scc-g.org/2017/09/16/ambazonia-soldiers-on-the-ground-to-protect-their-territory/ 4

45 Ambazonia_ Justin Trudeau‘s Biafra_ - Canadian Global Affairs Institute https://www.cgai.ca/ambazonia_justin_trudeaus_biafra 16

46 ambazonia+defence+force videos, wetube24.com https://wetube24.com/search/ambazonia-defence-force 3

47 Ambazonian ‗Odeishi‘ Army Slaughtering LRC Soldiers In Numbers - BaretaNews https://www.bareta.news/ambazonian-odeishi-army-slaughtering-lrc-soldiers-numbers/ 18

48 Ambazonian Defence Forces_ Latest News, Videos and Photos of Ambazonian Defence Forces _ Times of India https://timesofindia.indiatimes.com/topic/Ambazonian-Defence-Forces 10

49 Ambazonian Forces Order Gov‘t Officials To Leave Buea _ CameroonPostline https://cameroonpostline.com/ambazonian-forces-order-govt-officials-to-leave-buea/ 4

50 Ambazonian Independence Action Plan Chef Des Ambazonia Defence Forces https://dailyheralds.org/tag/chef-des-ambazonia-defence-forces 9

51 Ambazonian Separatists in Cameroon _ Acled Data https://www.acleddata.com/2018/05/04/ambazonian-separatists-in-cameroon/ 4

52 Ambazonians struggle for independence from Cameroon amid military takeover https://wagingnonviolence.org/2018/06/ambazonians-struggle-independence-cameroon-military-takeover/ 3

53 Ambazonie_ Ayuk Tabe oublié, voici le nouveau visage de la sécession _ General News 2018-05-16 https://www.camerounweb.com/CameroonHomePage/NewsArchive/Ambazonie-Ayuk-Tabe-oubli-voici-le-nouveau-visage-de-la-s-cession-439411 2

54 Ambazonie_ nomination d'un successeur au Géneral Ivo _ General News 2018-12-21 https://www.cameroonweb.com/CameroonHomePage/NewsArchive/Ambazonie-nomination-d-un-successeur-au-G-neral-Ivo-452948 1

55 Analysing Cameroon‘s Anglophone Crisis on JSTOR https://www.jstor.org/stable/26380430?seq=1#metadata_info_tab_contents 4

56 Anglophone Crisis in Cameroon was Decades in the Making https://www.cfr.org/blog/anglophone-crisis-cameroon-was-decades-making 5

57 Anglophone crisis_ Gunmen attack defence minister e convoy - Son Dakika Gündem Haberleri Pidgin https://gundem.xyz/pidgin/tori-44817531 5

58 Another October 1st 2018 _ cameroon-report.com https://cameroon-report.com/securite/another-october-1st-2018/ 7

59 Anti-War & Militarism News _ Indybay https://www.indybay.org/antiwar/ 11

60 Ärileht - Uudiseid majandusmaailmast- ärileht.ee http://arileht.delfi.ee/ 17

61 Armed conflict in Cameroon's Anglophone region – A2 Global Risk https://www.a2globalrisk.com/analysis/sub-saharan-africa/cameroons-anglophone-problem-grows-into-an-armed-conflict/ 5

62 Army general admits ‗Ambazonian fighters not losing the war in Southern Cameroons‘ – SCBC _ The Voice Of Ambazonia https://scbctv.com/army-general-admits-ambazonian-fighters-not-losing-the-war-in-southern-cameroons/ 8

63 Army‘s reaction – The Publisher Nigeria News http://thepublisherngr.com/category/armys-reaction/ 1

64 As Cameroon English Speakers Fight to Break Away, Violence Mounts - The New York Times https://www.nytimes.com/2018/06/28/world/africa/cameroon-secession.html 7

65 At least 10 killed in heavy fighting between army, separatist - CameroonOnline.org https://www.cameroononline.org/at-least-10-killed-in-heavy-fighting-between-army-separatist/ 2

66 At least 15 killed in Cameroon in clashes between army, separatists _ Reuters https://www.reuters.com/article/us-cameroon-separatists/at-least-15-killed-in-cameroon-in-clashes-between-army-separatists-idUSKCN1NI2VM 4

67 Bamenda Explosions_ 'Ambazonia Defence Forces Responsible' http://www.tinzwei.com/2017/09/bamenda-explosions-ambazonia-defence.html 3

68 Batibo together with Ambazonia Defense Force Hosting the Amba Flag in their Territory - Part 1 https://fr-my.net/watchvideo/batibo-together-with-ambazonia-defense-force-hosting-the-amba-flag-in-their-territory-part-1-wmT-PsyKxT8.html 8
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